


 GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

Tuesday, July 16, 2019 - 7:00 p.m. 
Takiff Center - Community Hall  

Consistent with the requirements of the Illinois Compiled Statutes 5 ILCS 120/1 
through 120/6 (Open Meetings Act), notices of this meeting were posted. 

Meeting Location:  Takiff Center, 999 Green Bay Road, Glencoe, IL 60022 

A G E N D A 
I. Call to Order 

II. Roll Call
III. Consent Agenda Items

A. Minutes of June 18, 2019 Finance Committee of the Whole Meeting (pgs. 4-5) 
B. Minutes of June 18, 2019 Regular Board Meeting (pgs. 6-10)
C. Minutes of July 9, 2019 Committee of the Whole Meeting (pgs. 11-46)
D. Approval of the Bills (pgs. 47-65)

IV. Matters from the Public
V. Financial Report (pgs. 66-69) 

VI. Staff Reports
A.  Business (pg. 71)
B. Recreation and Facilities (pgs. 72-76)
C. Parks and Maintenance (pgs. 77-78)
D. Marketing and Communications (pgs. 79-80) 
E. Safety and Wellness Committee (pg. 81)

VII. Executive Director Report (pgs. 83-93)
VIII. Action Items

A. Approval of Resolution No. 901: A Resolution for the Commitment of $650,000 of the
Corporate Fund Balance and $850,000 of the Recreation Fund Balance for Future 
Capital Projects of the Glencoe Park District  (pgs.94-96)

B. Approval of the Annual Treasurer’s Report  (pgs. 97-112)
C. Approval to Cancel the August Regular Committee Meeting (pg. 113) 

IX. Other Business
X. Executive Session 

A. Personnel 5ILCS 120/2 (c)(1) 

XI. Adjournment

The Glencoe Park District is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Individuals with disabilities who plan to 
attend this meeting and who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have 
questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or facilities, are asked to contact the Park District at 847-835-3030. Executive Director Email: 
lsheppard@glencoeparkdistrict.com  



III. Consent Agenda Items
Section 2.06(b) of the Open Meetings Act allows a public entity to approve

minutes either within 30 days after the relevant meeting OR at the public body’s
second subsequent regular meeting, whichever is LATER. For consistency, all

minutes will be approved at the subsequent Regular Board Meeting.

Items on the Consent Agenda are representative of routine actions by the Board
of Directors or staff. Members of the Board of Park Commissioners are invited
and encouraged to call the Executive Director prior to the meeting with any

questions about consent agenda items.

The Board President asks for a motion to adopt the consent agenda items.
However, if any member of the Board wishes to discuss any item on the consent
agenda, for any reason whatsoever, he or she may ask that the item be removed

from the consent agenda and the President will change the agenda per the
request.

The Executive Director recommends approval of the consent agenda.

Glencoe Park District
July 2019 Board Meeting



DRAFT

MINUTES OF JUNE 18, 2019 FINANCE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 
GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 

999 GREEN BAY ROAD, GLENCOE, ILLINOIS  60022 

The meeting was called to order at 6:32pm and roll was called. 

Commissioners present:  Staff present: 
Michael Covey, Chair/Treasurer Lisa Sheppard, Executive Director/Secretary 
Lisa Brooks, President  Carol Mensinger, Director of Finance/HR
Stefanie Boron, Vice President  Chris Leiner, Director of Parks/Maintenance 
Dudley Onderdonk, Commissioner Bobby Collins, Director of Recreation/Facilities 

Erin Classen, Supt. of Marketing/Comm. 
      Jenny Runkel, Administrative Assistant 
Commissioner absent: 
Josh Lutton, Commissioner 

Members of the Public in Attendance Who Signed In or Spoke:  Ron Amen of 
Lauterbach and Amen 

Matters from the Public:  There was no one wishing to address the committee.

Discussion of FY2018/19 Annual Audit Report, Management Letter, Other:  Director 
Mensinger introduced Ron Amen, managing partner of Lauterbach and Amen, from the 
District’s audit firm. Mr. Amen presented the FY2018/19 Annual Audit Report and 
Management Letter. 

Commissioner Boron arrived at 6:35p. 

Board discussion with Mr. Amen, the Board, and Director Mensinger ensued. 

Chair Covey directed staff, based on discussion of the committee, to move the 
FY2018/19 Annual Audit forward for approval at the June 18 regular board meeting. 

Discussion on Reserve a Portion of Current Fund Balance for Future Capital:  Director 
Mensinger recommended to the Board that the Park District transfer monies exceeding 
fund balance guideline levels in both Recreation and Corporate Funds. A sample 
resolution was provided to the Board for review with possible action to be taken at the 
July regular board meeting. The amounts recommended to the Board to transfer to 
Fund 69 are $650,000 from the Corporate Fund and $850,000 from the Recreation 
Fund to fund future capital projects totaling $1.5 million. Discussion ensued. 

Chair Covey directed staff, based on discussion of the committee, to move reserving a 
portion of current fund balance for future capital forward for approval at the July 16 
regular board meeting. 

Discussion of Preliminary 2018 Final Tax Extension:  Per the preliminary final 2018 tax 
information given by the county, total EAV decreased by 3.98%. The total tax true 



2

impact to individual taxpayers cannot be determined until tax bills are received this 
summer, most likely in mid-July. Current bonds were reviewed and will be discussed at 
the July committee meeting. 

Other Business: There was no other business. 

Adjourn: Commissioner Boron moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:57pm. Commissioner 
Brooks seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

                   
Lisa M. Sheppard 
Secretary 



DRAFT

MINUTES OF JUNE 18, 2019 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 

999 GREEN BAY ROAD, GLENCOE, ILLINOIS  60022 

The meeting was called to order at 7:04pm and roll was called. 

Commissioners present:  Staff present: 
Lisa Brooks, President Lisa Sheppard, Executive Director/Secretary 
Stefanie Boron, Vice President Carol Mensinger, Director of Finance/HR
Michael Covey, Treasurer Chris Leiner, Director of Parks/Maintenance 
Josh Lutton, Commissioner Bobby Collins, Director of Recreation/Facilities 
Dudley Onderdonk, Commissioner Erin Classen, Supt. of Marketing/Comm. 
      Jenny Runkel, Administrative Assistant 
      
Members of the public in attendance who signed in or spoke:  Dan Kniaz, Andre 
Lerman, Shannon Love, January Stramaglia, Ronnie Wachter 

Consent Agenda:  A motion was made by Commissioner Onderdonk to approve the 
consent agenda items as presented including Minutes of the May 21, 2019 Regular 
Board Meeting, June 4, 2019 Committee of the Whole Meeting, and Approval of the 
Bills. Commissioner Lutton seconded the motion. Roll call vote taken: 
  AYES: Boron, Covey, Lutton, Onderdonk, Brooks 
  NAYS: None 
  ABSENT: None 
  The motion passed. 

Matters from the Public:  Andre Lerman congratulated the new members elected to the 
Board and thanked them for their love of the District. 

Financial Report:  Director of Finance/Human Resources Mensinger stated we are three 
months into the new fiscal year. Recreation looks like it is off the charts, but a GJK 
payment is skewing the numbers. Beach daily fees are down due to weather, hopefully 
to be made up in July and August. Daycare is up in revenue.

Staff Reports: Staff shared additional information not included in their Board Reports.

Director Mensinger stated that the Board moved the audit forward for approval tonight, 
the fund balance transfer approval going before the Board in July, and staff is starting 
the next budget with staff earlier this year. Lorise Weil’s retirement party is this 
Thursday.

Director Collins shared that camp started on Monday. A follow up to a commissioner 
question from the last meeting, the Children’s Circle waitlist breakdown is 35 residents 
and 41 nonresidents, although 15 live in the city and plan to move to the North Shore. 



2

Director Leiner highlighted that we hired a contractor to catch up with weeds in high 
profile locations. The team is getting our parks ready for the Fourth of July and focusing 
on getting GBA out to play baseball.

Weather was reviewed as well as determining when to bring in contractors, and 
pickleball courts and program. Northshore Mosquito Abatement treated once this year; 
larvae site applications are at no cost. Park flooding will be part of the capital projects 
discussion in July; one park in particular is Kalk Park. Our shared services agreement 
with the Village includes Park District maintenance of Village owned land and the Village 
provides fleet services for District vehicles and small equipment. In addition, the District 
grows flowers for the Village, the publication of Inside Glencoe, and events including 
Meet the Machines and Fourth of July. 

Superintendent Classen imparted that Finding Gus is popular; we are out of the original 
750 brochures available in our parks. Our intern disseminated flyers to coffee shops 
about our programs. 

Safety and Wellness Committee reported extensive safety training for summer staff. 

Executive Director Report:  Executive Director Sheppard shared that the NSSRA 
property acquisition will close on August 30. The District’s closing and design 
contribution is $46,211 to be paid in early August from fund balance reserves. The 
NSSRA Foundation is committed to raising $2 million within the next seven months to 
pay for programming space. The money raised will be funded 50/50 from taxes and 
private donations. The State of Illinois budget includes $500,000 earmarked for NSSRA 
and another $150,000 from Senator Fine. Next year our contribution will be 
approximately $100,000 with Board approval. We have quite a few residents who use 
NSSRA programming. Adults stay with this program from birth to death gaining in 
participation as an adult. They also provide aides for our programs, camps, and GJK. 
NSSRA is a great asset to the community. 

Beach pictures presented depicted lake levels 30 inches above average. High water 
levels have almost reached a section of boating lockers that had to be cleared out, 
cannot be moved, and may be a casualty. Water is almost up to the top of the pier and 
may rise enough to go over the pier. Staff are looking at closing the pier for the first time 
as a safety precaution for those people who like to watch waves on the pier during 
storms. An assessment on the pier for long-term solutions will be discussed for capital 
projects.

The new Takiff bike racks are packed and not one bike was attached to a tree.

For the Fourth of July event, Commissioner Boron will be in the parade and 
Commissioner Covey volunteered for the dunk tank. The lineup was reviewed. 

The Gold Medal video was presented. 



3

Dog Park Task Force applicants were selected for a yes/no balance and open-
mindedness to hear the opposite opinion. A Doodle poll is out to schedule meetings, 
which will not open to the public. Their findings will be shared at an open meeting at 
which the community will have a chance to comment on. We anticipate it taking all 
summer into fall. Commissioners Brooks and Boron will take turns attending meetings 
as Board representatives as well as Executive Director Sheppard. 

Old Green Bay Linear Trail project design was reviewed. In July, we can discuss 
options for the playground. There will be more discussion on activity pods before the 
designs. So far, it should not look like other parks, no netting, yes to a group swing, and 
the budget is $275,000. Commissioner Boron will email her ideas in advance. The 
Board will talk about activity pods in July. Altamanu will bring five to eight stock footage 
items to the Board to select four items to move forward for the design. Activity pods are 
designed but not funded. 

The District will hear if we received the three grants by the end of August. 

Action Items: 

Approval of Fiscal Year 2018/19 Annual Audit:  A motion was made by Commissioner 
Onderdonk to approve the Fiscal Year 2018/19 Annual Audit as presented.
Commissioner Boron seconded the motion. No discussion ensued. Roll call vote taken: 
  AYES: Boron, Covey, Lutton, Onderdonk, Brooks 
  NAYS: None 
  ABSENT: None 
  The motion passed. 

Approval of the changes to the Fees and Charges Policy:  A motion was made by 
Commissioner Boron to approve changes to the Fees and Charges Policy as presented.
Commissioner Lutton seconded the motion. No discussion ensued. Roll call vote taken: 
  AYES: Boron, Covey, Lutton, Onderdonk, Brooks 
  NAYS: None 
  ABSENT: None 
  The motion passed. 

Approval of Staff and Board to attend NRPA Annual Congress:  A motion was made by 
Commissioner Boron to approve for Glencoe Park District Staff to attend NRPA Annual 
Congress with expenses not to exceed $8,500 as presented. Commissioner Lutton 
seconded the motion. No discussion ensued. Roll call vote taken: 
  AYES: Boron, Covey, Lutton, Onderdonk, Brooks 
  NAYS: None 
  ABSENT: None 
  The motion passed. 

A motion was made by Commissioner Lutton to approve Commissioner Boron to attend 
NRPA Conference with expenses not to exceed $300.00. The District will pay for the 
Exhibit Only package registration and a per diem dinner are paid for by the District; 



4

commissioners to pay all other expenses including flight and hotel. Commissioner 
Covey seconded the motion. Roll call vote taken: 
  AYES: Boron, Covey, Lutton, Onderdonk, Brooks 
  NAYS: None 
  ABSENT: None 
  The motion passed. 

Approval of the Takiff Center Early Childhood Play Space Bid:  A motion was made by 
Commissioner Lutton to approve of the lowest responsible bidder, Hacienda 
Landscaping of Minooka IL, including deductive alternates 1,2,3,4 for a total of 
$771,717.75 as presented. Commissioner Boron seconded the motion. Deductive 
alternatives are ideas thrown out by Board members, teachers, and staff to make it a 
little more special including age-specific play pails, kaleidoscope benches, circular 
bench, and some additional concrete graphics. The bids did not come in low to allow for 
the deductive alternatives and they will be removed to stay within budget. If there is 
money left over from contingency, additional play panels could be installed by staff later. 
The warranty of the playground surface is ten years. Roll call vote taken: 
  AYES: Boron, Covey, Lutton, Onderdonk, Brooks 
  NAYS: None 
  ABSENT: None 
  The motion passed. 

Approval of the Asphalt Pathways in Lakefront Park and Watts Park Bid:  A motion was 
made by Commissioner Lutton to approve of the lowest responsible bidder J & R 1st in 
Asphalt of Hickory Hills, IL, for a total of $25,348 as presented. Commissioner Boron 
seconded the motion. Repairs are for deteriorating pathways; a Fund 65 project for 
regular routine maintenance. Narrow park pathways require special equipment, not all 
companies have this equipment. J & R does have one and does not need to rent one at 
a higher cost shown in the other ridiculous bids. Roll call vote taken: 
  AYES: Boron, Covey, Lutton, Onderdonk, Brooks 
  NAYS: None 
  ABSENT: None 
  The motion passed. 

Approval of the Altamanu Inc. contract for architectural services for the 
repairs/restoration of the Schuman Overlook:  A motion was made by Commissioner 
Boron to approve of the Altamanu agreement for landscape architectural services, 
structural engineering, civil engineering, and soil borings related specifically to the 
development of the design and legal bid documents for the Schuman Overlook repairs 
for a total of $49,345 as presented. Commissioner Lutton seconded the motion. This is 
for developing the bid document for permitting and to give to the contractor, coming 
back to the Board for the bid amount for the Board to approve. Roll call vote taken: 
  AYES: Boron, Covey, Lutton, Onderdonk, Brooks 
  NAYS: None 
  ABSENT: None 
  The motion passed. 



5

Approval of the Resolution of Authorization for the IDNR OSLAD grant application for 
the Connect Glencoe project:  A motion was made by Commissioner Lutton to adopt the 
Resolution of Authorization for the State of Illinois Department of Natural Resources 
(IDNR) Open Space Land and Development (OSLAD) Grant Application for the Green 
Bay Trail Linear Park renovation project and authorize Executive Director Sheppard to 
sign the agreement as presented. Commissioner Boron seconded the motion. The state 
of IL issued OSLAD grants due August 15 giving us a short window to submit. We will 
have discussion at the July meeting on what we want to to submit in the OSLAD grant. 
Staff is recommending submitting the current design for design and construction. We 
have to pass this resolution to start the process, allow staff to move forward with Board 
approval and for the Board to apply for the grant, and we have the funds to back up the 
grant. If we get the grant, we are obligated to spend those funds in the minimum amount 
of $400,000 for funded elements already in the budget. Erin and Chris will be writing the 
grant with map support from Altamanu. Roll call vote taken: 
  AYES: Boron, Covey, Lutton, Onderdonk, Brooks 
  NAYS: None 
  ABSENT: None 
  The motion passed. 

Other Business: There was no other business. 

Closed Session: There was no reason to enter into closed session. 

Adjourn: Commissioner Covey moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:20pm. Commissioner 
Onderdonk seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

                   
Lisa M. Sheppard 
Secretary 



DRAFT

MINUTES OF JULY 9, 2019 COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 
GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 

999 GREEN BAY ROAD, GLENCOE, ILLINOIS  60022 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00pm and roll was called. 

Committee Members present:  Staff present: 
Lisa Brooks, President Lisa Sheppard, Executive Director/Secretary 
Michael Covey, Treasurer Carol Mensinger, Director of Finance/HR 
Josh Lutton, Commissioner  Chris Leiner, Director of Parks/Maintenance 
Dudley Onderdonk, Commissioner Bobby Collins, Director of Recreation/Facilities 

Committee Member absent: 
Stefanie Boron, Vice President 

Members of the Public in attendance who signed in or spoke:  Josephine Bellalta, John 
Mac Manus 

Matters from the Public: There were no matters from the public. 

Discussion on Lincoln and Crescent Playground Design: Executive Director Sheppard 
thanked commissioners for their ideas staff forwarded to Altamanu to include in the 
design.

Commissioner Lutton arrived at 7:05pm. 

Commissioner preferences on budget, grants/donations, and playground features were 
reviewed. Staff offered alternate playground feature options, described functional linked 
play versus a raindrop footprint including cost and social effect on children, and 
explained curbs related to drainage and fall zone.

Because of the tight timing to apply for the OSLAD grant by August 15, Altamanu will 
start designing for submission with the grant. Staff was just notified that we cannot apply 
for trail funds from both the Trail Grant and OSLAD, however we can apply to OSLAD 
for the playground, interactive fountain, and trunnel project. In August, Sheppard will 
have meetings with each commissioner for design review and approval for use in the 
grant application. Minor modifications are permitted after submission to OSLAD, but not 
any big changes.

Discussion on “Connect Glencoe” Proposed Activity Pods: Executive Director Sheppard 
made a correction on the packet memo, some commissioners are in favor of the fitness 
equipment, but do not want bright colors. Josephine Bellalta and John Mac Manus of 
Altamanu gave a presentation of the proposed activity pods attached to these minutes.
Commissioner comments revolved around tastefully simple, multi-use, natural, 
integrated. Discussion ensued on age range, uses, comfort, durability, and shade. 



2

Discussion on 3-Year Capital Projects Plan (Fund 69): Executive Director Sheppard 
stated that the FY2020-21 plan is complete. Following today’s review of the five-year 
conditions assessment, the timeline continues with a park tour starting from Watts in 
August to visit dire one and two category parks followed by September through March 
discussion and finalizing the plan through FY2023-24. In October, Fund 65 project 
discussion will begin. In February/March, the capital plan will go before the Board for 
approval.

A five-year conditions assessment was reviewed including all District inventory. 
Discussed ensued on design plan, priorities, cost, advisory referendum, bonds, 
consultants, donors, low use versus high use amenities, low data/value data/Master 
Plan data driven decisions, closing down an asset to save another asset versus 
increasing taxes. 

Staff will bring data to the Board to see if the community is underserved in any area. 

Other Business: There was no other business. 

All staff were dismissed with the exception of Executive Director Sheppard. 

Adjourn to Closed Session: At 8:47pm, Commissioner Onderdonk moved to adjourn into 
closed session to discuss real estate as mandated by Section 2.06. 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(5) 
and (6). Commissioner Lutton seconded the motion, which passed unanimously by roll 
call vote. 

Return to Open Session:  Commissioner Onderdonk moved to return to open session at 
9:30pm. Commissioner Lutton seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous voice 
vote.

There was no action taken during or after closed session. 

Adjourn: Commissioner Onderdonk moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:31pm. 
Commissioner Lutton seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

                   
Lisa M. Sheppard 
Secretary 



Old Green Bay Road Linear Parks
July 9th, 2019



Delighted to be Here!!!



Old Green Bay and Glencoe History Intertwined

Concept for Lincoln and Crescent

Group Swings

Miniature Train 

Main Playground

Water Fountain



“Stick to $275K Budget”
Spreading out the equipment increases cost

“If the play structures are spread out there is a 
danger of older children running around them and 
colliding with the smaller children. 

“Another issue is that accompanying adults will have 
to follow the children every time they move, and this 
raises difficulty when there is more than one child to 
watch”. (only for younger children)

Design of Children’s Play Environments by Mitsuru Senda

Lincoln and Crescent



• Do not repeat structures in other playgrounds 

• Small playground for toddlers/Ninja piece for older kids
• Needs to be Done with Great Care

• More exciting stand alone piece for older kids
• Cost Implications and Adjacency 

Lincoln and Crescent



Connect Glencoe: National Trends

Call for Intergenerational Recreation

Get kids outside and into nature

But how to do it?

Tastefully Simple, Easy-to-Use, High-Quality, Enjoyable.



Teens in the Parks

Young people, in particular, are less tolerated in public spaces 
(Day and Wagner 2010) 

Teen girls, in particular, are isolated from public space 
(Loukaitou-Sideris and Sideris 2010).

“Teens don’t go to parks because they are “for little kids” what 
teens want is places to hang out, with benches and tables, and 
green areas,”                    (Tess Landon, program coordinator for LBBA Labs)

“People think teens want to be separate. It goes against what 
teens consistently request, which is a place for all ages”.

“They (teens) wanted to make teen-friendly but also all person-
friendly socializing spaces.”   (Youth Opportunities Board surveyed teens)



What Teens Want : Survey
• WiFi Critical for accessing music and other media with phones.

• Study Areas . Repeatedly requested places to hang out and complete school work 

together outside. Simple picnic tables, some shelter from the elements, "a grove of 

trees with tables and benches”. 

• Movie Nights – a performance space with a wide range of movies for all ages.

• Food Trucks and Cafés

• Interactive Lighting and Art – Teens are drawn to interactive spaces, whether they 

be interactive lights or interactive sculptures that allow climbing or play.

• Play Spaces for Children and Adults – Parks that mix play types are more effective at 

enabling interaction, large swings require cooperation, space for pick-up games, 

ping-pong tables. Younger teens want active forms of play, such as zip lines or 

parkour courses that allow risk taking



What Teens Want : Survey

• Trees, Flowers, Nature – Teens enjoy being in nature while with their friends.

• Music Events – Malmö, Sweden, Hook up their phones to a musical system with 

speakers, lights, and interactive benches. They select music, hang out, and dance.

• Lighting – Teen girls in particular, request lighting. Extends the length of time teens 

spend in the park and enjoyable walk through public spaces instead of going around 

it during dusk or darkness.

• Water features – water play with younger siblings and friends as well as water 

fountains for sound and visual interest.

The City of Boulder’s Parks and Recreation department/Youth Opportunities Board



Fitness



Fitness



Fitness



Fitness



Gathering Spaces : Seating Pods All Ages



Gathering Spaces : All Ages



Chess Tables



Chess Tables



Chess Tables



Seating Pods : Traditional



Seating Pods : Surprising



Seating Pods : In Natural Surroundings



Seating Pods : In Natural Surroundings



Seating Pods : Family



Seating Pods : Groups and Individual



Seating Pods : Unique



Seating Pods : Dope



Seating Pods : “No Interest Bench”



Seating Pods : “No Interest Bench”



Seating Pods : “No Interest Bench”



Getting Teens Involved



Group Bench



Getting Teens Involved



Group Bench



Thank You
Altamanu.com









































V. Financial Report

Glencoe Park District
July 2019 Board Meeting







Glencoe Park District
Monthly Financial Analysis
June 2019

As of As of As of
6/30/2017 6/30/2018 6/30/2019

Recreation Department - Programs
Revenues 1,876,778 1,988,644 2,113,714
Wages (144,720) (156,557) (154,336)
Contractual (682,034) (633,789) (782,553)
Supplies (32,819) (35,375) (54,448)
     Net Surplus 1,017,205 1,162,923 1,122,377

Day Care Department
Revenue 309,282 372,809 480,044
Expense (225,706) (281,986) (395,275)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) 83,576 90,823 84,769

Fitness Department
Revenue n/a 15,508 10,777
Expense n/a (13,746) (16,000)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) n/a 1,762 (5,223)

Beach Department
Revenue 140,464 138,344 99,821
Expense (93,969) (85,184) (82,596)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) 46,495 53,160 17,225

Boating Department
Revenue 85,244 80,981 79,194
Expense (49,803) (64,875) (55,441)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) 35,441 16,106 23,753

Beach/Boating Dept Total 81,936 69,266 40,978

Watts Department
Revenue 2,113 881 10,501
Expenses (43,193) (47,960) (79,959)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (41,080) (47,079) (69,458)

G & A (Administration)
Revenue (excl G&A Tfr) 11,495 10,805 10,768
Expense (387,963) (386,340) (401,674)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (376,468) (375,535) (390,906)

Parks Department
Revenue 755 4,039 25
Expense (322,980) (327,678) (393,995)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (322,225) (323,639) (393,970)

Rec-Admin/Takiff  Department
Revenues 613,659 630,531 650,736
Expenses (1,674,015) (1,070,994) (1,323,325)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (1,060,356) (440,463) (672,589)



VI. Staff Reports

Glencoe Park District
July 2019 Board Meeting



Glencoe Park District 
Business Department Report 

July 2019

Fall Program Registration 
The fall brochure is expected to be delivered to residents during the week of July 8. Residents will be 
able to register online starting at 7:00am on a first come-first serve basis on Wednesday, July 31.  
Non-residents will be able to begin registering for programs on August 5. Preliminary planning meetings 
with staff will be held two weeks prior to registration. 

FY 2018/19 Annual Audit Report Follow-up 
Since the Board officially accepted the FY2018/19 Annual Audit Report at last month’s Board meeting, 
the document has been posted to the District’s website, was filed with the Cook County Clerk’s Office, 
and was uploaded to both the Cook County Treasurer’s website and the EMMA website (for continuing 
disclosure on our outstanding bond issues).

FY 2018/19 Annual Treasurer’s Report 
The Annual Treasurer’s Report is no longer required to be published – just a notice of publication 
stating that the Annual Audit Report is available for review. However, the Annual Treasurer’s Report 
must still be completed and approved. It is included in your packet and will be posted to the District’s 
website after the Board’s approval. 

2018 Final Tax Extension 
Preliminary final draft information for the 2018 Real Estate Taxes that was distributed to the Board for 
the Finance Committee of the Whole last month has now been finalized by the County. Second 
installment tax bills were mailed and are due August 1. 

3-5 Year Master Plan Project updates 
Staff has assisted in the discussion of information that will be presented to the Board for the  
July 9 Committee of the Whole meeting on future master plan projects. 

Submitted by: 
Carol Mensinger, CPRP 
Director of Finance/Human Resources 



Glencoe Park District 
Recreation and Facilities Department 

July 2019 

Recreation Department Report: Bobby Collins 
The recreation department continues to provide a wide variety of exceptional experiences this 
summer. There is no better example of this than the expanded Glencoe Fourth of July 
Celebration to celebrate the 150th anniversary of the Village of Glencoe, which provides a full 
day of fun for residents of all ages. 

Camps continue on as they reach the midpoint of the eight week season. Campers have been 
enjoying time onsite with theme days such as “Witchcraft and Wizards Day” and “The Amazing 
Race” while also going on field trips to places like a Cubs game and Rainbow Falls Waterpark.  
It has been a challenging month for the Beach, but Matt and his staff have done a great job 
controlling costs while still keeping the beach accessible to our guests. We are all hoping for the 
weather to improve. 

Beach: Matt Walker 
The beach has completed its first full month of operation of the 2019 summer season. The 
weather during the month of June was very inconsistent, resulting in very low attendance. 
Temperatures failed to reach 62 degrees on seven occasions resulting in limited staff on duty. 
The beach was closed for three days due to high bacteria counts.   

With the unpredictable weather, daily admissions will continue to fluctuate, but we are enjoying 
this warm stretch and maximizing on revenue. Summer boat storage is slightly higher than this 
time last year with the addition of some new kayak and SUP owners joining our boating beach. 
The majority of boat storage revenue has been collected and the boating beach is at capacity for 
sand spots. 

Our popular Aquatics and Sailing Camps have been very successful with waitlists for every 
session of each camp. The high enrollment is encouraging and staff will continue to look for 
ways to grow the programs in the future. The beach camp schedule is designed so campers can 
participate in Aquatics Camp in the morning from 9:30am-12:00pm, Sailing Camp in the 
afternoon from 12:30pm-3:00pm, or campers may register for both and spend the entire day 
down on the beach. 

The Glencoe Boat Club will mark its 52nd anniversary this month and kicked off the regatta 
season with the first race weekend on July 13-14.

Revenue
As of 7/1/2019 2019 2018 Variance 

Summer Boat Storage $77,774 $77,356 $418 
Trellis Rentals $7,741 $ 6,520 $1,221 
Beach Passes $46,460 $50,934 $(4,474)
Sailing Camp $36,988 $30,495 $6,493 
Aquatics Camp $33,455 $30,495 $2,960 
Total Revenue $204,437 $197,818 $6,619 



Early Childhood: Jessica Stockl 
Children’s Circle students have been enjoying the summer lesson plans. Our older classes have 
traveled to the nearby parks and Wildlife Discovery in Lake Forest. We have 15 new students 
joining the program with the first group coming August 1. We are excited to be able to offer 
openings to some of the families on the waitlist.  

Children’s Circle Enrollment 
As of 7/3/2019 2018/19 2017/18

Jellyfish 5 15 
Frogs 7 14 

Turtles (NEW) 6 0 
Starfish 16 17 

Dolphins (NEW) 18 0 
Belugas 14 21 
Total 66 67 

Early Learning Center enrollment has been stable since the end of the school year. During June, 
we had two more enrollments in our afternoon Kindergarten Readiness program. We are running 
one class of AM 4-year-olds this fall.

Early Childhood campers are having a wonderful time during the first three weeks of camp. They 
were able to participate in Tots-N-Tunes, trips to the beach, and T-shirt tie-dying for the Fourth 
of July celebration! We have multiple campers who have already decided to extend their time 
with us.

Athletics and Sports: Bobby Collins 
We have finished second round interviews for the athletics manager position and are close to 
bringing on a new team member. I want to thank the whole recreation team for stepping in and 
covering additional responsibility while the position has been vacant. 

ELC Camp Enrollment 
As of 7/3/2019 2019 2018 2017 

ELC 2s 16 18 19 
ELC 3s 14 16 19 
ELC 4s 17 27 42 

Kindergarten Readiness  7 7 (was part of 4s)
Total 54 68 80 

EC Camp Enrollment 
As of 7/3/2019 2019 2018 2017 

Teddies 27 0 18 
Pandas 20 36 25 
Koalas 39 47 45 

Kinder Korner  62 70 64 
Total 148 153 152 



Baseball has been busy finishing its summer season and celebrated a great season with their all-
star games on July 3-4. Both tennis and karate are starting new summer sessions. Tennis 
continues to trend upwards with revenue of $11,166 compared to $4,966. 

Arts and Youth: Stephani Briskman 
Sun Fun, Camp Adventure, Action Quest are entering their halfway point of camp! Despite the 
inconsistent weather, camp has had a great start to the summer. The camp staff have been great 
working with inclement weather alternative activity planning, so campers still enjoyed their day 
at camp.  

The Counselor-in-Training program is entering their halfway point as well. Jon Pranian, our 
camp director, has been involved in preparing participants to be future counselors for the 
District. The CIT’s receive pre-camp training, are given weekly points of emphasis and bi-
weekly performance reviews. They accompany the camps they work with on field trips and go 
on two of their own field trips each 4-week session. 

Sun Fun Enrollment 
As of 6/6/19 8 Week 4 Week 2 Week 

2019 90 48 42 
2018 97 38 39 

Camp Adventure Enrollment 
As of 6/6/19 8 Week 4 Week 2 Week 

2019 23 42 34 
2018 28 35 29 

Special Events & Active Adults: Liz Visteen 
This year’s Sesquicentennial Fourth of July Celebration was bigger and better than ever with the 
longer parade route ending at Lakefront Park which lead into Party in the Park. Party in the Park 
consisted of the band Serendipity, games and inflatables on the tennis court, food trucks, and 
beer/wine sales. The evening band, Blooze Brothers, was a huge hit. Due to the wet condition of 
the Lakefront Park, the stage was relocated to Park Ave which provided a larger and dryer area 
for everyone to see and dance to the music. Also on Park Ave was the beer/wine sales and food 
trucks. It really all added up to a fabulous party in the park. The festivities earlier in the day 
included the Rotary Fun Run, Preschool Games, Glencoe’s Got Talent, and the Parade.   

Special Event Attendance 2019 2018 
W, June 12 – GJHP Beach Bash  ~ 150 130 
F, June 14 – Art Opening ~ 25 Not offered 
Th, June 20 – Park-N-Play: Summer Solstice ~ 25 Canceled 
Tu, June 25 – Tots-N-Tunes: Rick Kelley ~ 125 ~ 200 
Th, June 27 – Park-N-Play: Bubbles of Fun 15 65 
Th, July 4 – Rotary Fun Run ~ 200 179 
Th, July 4 – Preschool Games/Mini Golf ~ 350 ~350 
Th, July 4 – Glencoe’s Got Talent 13 acts 12 acts 
Th, July 4 – Party in the Park ~ 400 Not offered 
Th, July 4 – Fireworks ~ 2000 ~ 2000 

Action Quest 
As of 6/6/19 2019 2018 

Total 96 48 

CIT 
As of 6/6/19 2019 2018 

Total 43 42 



Upcoming special events:  
Th, July 11 – Park-N-Play: Let’s Go Fly a Kite 
Th, July 18 – Park-N-Play: Water Wonders 
Sa, July 20 – Meet The Machines 
Tu, July 23 – Tots-N-Tunes: Miss Jamie 
Th, July 25 – Park-N-Play: Fun Family Hours in the Garden
F, July 26 – Beach Camp Out 

Takiff, Fitness, & Watts: Adam Wohl  
We are slightly behind last year for total revenue. A big part of this reason is due to @Properties 
no longer utilizing the Takiff Center for rentals. They accounted for nearly $4,500.00 in 2018 
from 3/1/2018-6/30/2018. 

Takiff Center Rental 
as of 6/30/2019 2019-20 2018-19 

Facility Rentals $29,047.50 $35,358.50 

During the month of June, we officially began our Pickleball Open Play and Workshops. Here 
are some statistics related to our participation during the three weeks in June. We are offering 
three days per week for drop-in pickleball. They are on Mondays & Thursdays from 9:30am-
12:00pm and Sundays from 1:00-4:00pm. We have had 43 total people drop in to play in the first 
three weeks. This should only continue to grow as word gets out that it is available at the Takiff 
Center. Our numbers will also be higher on days when the weather is not as nice. 

We also are running two six-week workshops. Participants have the option to register for the full 
six-week session or drop in for $25/class.

Pickleball Workshop  Registered Drop-In 
Mondays 7 2 
Thursdays 3 12 

Glencoe Fitness Center 
We are finally able to compare our current active members from year to year for the Glencoe 
Fitness Center. Adam continues to work closely with Erin Classen to actively recruit new 
potential members. We gained 10 new members in the month of June.  

We are currently running our summer student membership for $99 for three months and have 13 
purchased for the summer. We have had a lot of student foot traffic in the fitness center through 
seven-day passes. Hopefully, some of these will translate to a summer membership.  

We will be doing a Tour de France challenge in July/August. It will be an individual and fitness 
center challenge to complete the full 2000+ mile course over a six-week period. 



*Included summer student memberships 

Retention Rates 
(as of 7/2/19)

# of Members  
for Renewal 

# of Members 
who Renewed 

% of Members 
that Renewed 

February 126 52 41.2% 
March 9 5 55.5% 
April 14 6 42.9% 
May 8 3 37.5% 
June 8 2 25% 

Wake Up and Move
Our Recreation Assistant, Ann Scheuer, kicked off our active lifestyles initiative this summer. 
We are promoting 30 minutes of movement (walking, biking, running, or rolling). Utilizing the 
Takiff Center and Kalk Park walking paths, each loop is 0.20 miles long. Each time a participant 
completes a lap they put a popsicle stick in a container to represent their completion of 0.20 
miles. Below is a table of participation by day and total miles completed. 

Date # of Laps # of Miles # of People
Saturday, June 15 44 8.8 14
Tuesday, June 18 38 7.6 8
Thursday, June 20 Canceled due to inclement weather
Saturday, June 22 26 5.2 7
Tuesday, June 25 63 12.6 16
Thursday, June 27 98 19.6 19
Saturday, June 29 85 17 16
Tuesday, July 2 17 3.4 5
Total 371 74.2 85
Average 53 10.6 12.1

Submitted by: 
Bobby Collins, CPRP 
Director of Recreation and Facilities 

Glencoe Fitness 
Membership
(as of 7/2/19) 

2019-20 2018-19 

# Members Fees # Members Fees 
150* $10,777.00 214* $15,488.00 



Glencoe Park District 
Parks & Facilities Maintenance Report 

July 2019 

Administrative 
I have continued to work with Altamanu relating to the playground replacement at Takiff. The 
design process is beginning for the necessary improvements to the Schuman Overlook. I am 
coordinating with ACG to begin the paint, carpentry, and roofing project at the Takiff Center and 
Watts. Wight & Company is continuing to develop the bid documents related to the necessary 
updates in the IT room. 

Grounds/Horticulture
The landscape crews have been out in full force completing plantings throughout the District.
Lake Front Park and Kalk Park was heavily groomed in preparation for the 4th of July festivities. 
Trees were trimmed, landscaping was trimmed and beds were weeded. In addition repairs were 
made to the drinking fountain and tennis net posts. New nets and posts have been installed in 
Lakefront Park. 

Weeding has continued to be a top priority in July with weeding work done out front of Takiff, 
ELC Playground, Friends Park, Milton Park, Shelton Park, West Park, Berlin Park. 
Approximately 450 staff/contactor labor hours have been invested in landscape maintenance in 
the last four weeks.

Staff needed to water flower beds throughout Glencoe with the hot weather.

New portable picnic tables will replace aging wood tables throughout the park system.  

Staff has continued to treat standing water for mosquitos throughout the park system. 

Parks Maintenance & Construction 
Staff is working to refresh all the playground safety chips throughout the District as well as 
adding new play sand to each sand box. Adding new chips to the wildflower sanctuary will be 
completed in early July. 

Per state law, backflow preventer inspections took place throughout the entire Park District. Out 
of the 20 locations tested, 18 passed and two required repair.

Tennis court resurfacing will take place this month at Watts Park. 

Park Pathway resurfacing is scheduled for the month of July. 

Staff continues to groom baseball fields. We are balancing the project load against completing 
routine tasks such as turf repairs, emptying trash, and weed control. 



Facilities 
Facilities staff has begun to prepare for the Takiff Center annual shutdown in August. Scheduled 
maintenance includes gym floor refinishing, carpet cleaning, floor replacement, painting, and 
heavy cleaning. In addition, the fire alarm will be fully tested and inspected. 

Shared Services 
The Village of Glencoe has continued to support the Park District by performing maintenance on 
vehicles. All mowers received preventative maintenance this month; repairs made to multiple 
fleet trucks. 

We have continued to cut all Village of Glencoe grass per the shared services agreement. 
Staff worked well together to manage Fourth of July festivities throughout Glencoe. 

Submitted by: 
Chris Leiner, CPRP 
Director of Parks & Maintenance 



Glencoe Park District
Marketing/Communications Report 

July 2019 

Social Media/Email
We ended the month of June with 54,092 Facebook impressions (in 2018, we ended the month 
with 32,657 impressions). We now have 1,887 followers on Facebook, 926 followers on Twitter 
and 1,229 followers on Instagram. Glencoe Beach has 2,079 followers on Facebook. We also 
sent out several targeted email blasts: 

Date Sent Campaign Name Total
Sent

Open
Rate

Click
Through

Rate
Link

6/30/2019 Tour de France 309 34.10% 16.00% https://conta.cc/2Nj55oZ
6/28/2019 Summer News 6 6238 30.10% 11.30% https://conta.cc/2ISP5FS
6/21/2019 Summer News 5 6250 28.70% 11.50% https://conta.cc/2x7v7Ri
6/17/2019 Road Closure 6258 36.60% 0.20% https://conta.cc/2XlMsom
6/14/2019 Summer News 4 6258 26.40% 8.70% https://conta.cc/2Rbt3ki
6/7/2019 Glencoe Fitness June Tips 298 41.20% 0.90% https://conta.cc/2QRbmXh
6/7/2019 Summer News 3 6281 30.90% 13.90% https://conta.cc/2QQfVB3
6/4/2019 Summer Art Classes 443 41.00% 5.60% https://conta.cc/2Ku5hip

Weekly Emails 
This summer, we are once again sending weekly email blasts with a collection of information 
related to upcoming special events, classes, and programs. The emails are sent each Friday 
morning to everyone in our database; anyone that does not open the email Friday email receives 
a second email on Monday with the same information.  

Fourth of July 
To promote the Sesquicentennial Independence Day Celebration, I sent out several email blasts 
to the general public. Information was also included on our website, in our Summer Sampler, 
Spring/Summer Brochure, Inside Glencoe, flyers distributed to special event 
participants/campers, as well as information posted in the Village kiosks, on the Village website, 
on the Village mini-kiosks, and in Park District facilities. A Patriotic Days mailing was sent by 
the Village to all residents, as well as informational letters to all residents along Lakefront Park. 
Banners were posted at Lakefront Park, Halfway House, and the ramp/street entrances in 
advance of the event. I also worked with the Winnetka Park District to create an alternate 
location map for beachgoers. Leading up to the event (and during the event), video and photo 
updates were posted to the Park District’s Facebook, Instagram, and Twitter pages. We also built 
two floats to advertise the Park District during the parade. 

Fall Brochure 
I worked closely with staff to finalize the fall brochure using ProofHQ and InDesign. The fall 
brochure will be mailed to residents the week of July 8. Real-time registration for fall programs 
will start at 7:00am on Wednesday, July 31.  



Glencoe Beach 
I am working with staff to promote the beach. Promotion methods include information in the 
Summer Sampler mailing, information spring/summer brochure, graphics on our website and 
TVs, internal posters, and flyers. Amenity information is now included in our weekly email 
blasts. We purchased an ad in the summer issue of Keep Growing, the Chicago Botanic Garden’s 
member publication to promote the beach’s proximity to the gardens. We also purchased 
promoted posts on Facebook and Instagram, as well as devoted increased time to sharing user 
images on Instagram. 

Submitted by: 
Erin Classen 
Superintendent of Marketing and Communications 



SAFETY AND WELLNESS COMMITTEE 
Agenda and Minutes 

Wednesday, June 19, 2019 / 11:00 a.m.
(Please Note: Items in red print require action) 

1. Call to order at 11:08 a.m. 

Roll Call:  Present: Carol Mensinger, Chris Leiner, Liz Stowick, Jessica Stockl, Adam Wohl, Bobby Collins, 
Lauren Kinsey, and Matt Walker. Absent: Lisa Sheppard and Lorise Weil 

2.   Review of the Minutes: The Safety and Wellness Committee Meeting Minutes from May 15, 2019 were 
reviewed and accepted.     

3. Accident/Incident Review:  Carol reported on the accident/incident reports for June.  There were four (4) 
minor employee injuries.  There were six (6) minor participant injuries. There was one (1) property claim for 
vandalism at Watts. 

4. Facility and Park Inspection Review: Chris will have review for next meeting. 

5. Open Claims: Vandalism claim at Watts. Pier repair at the Beach. One (1) workers comp claim. 

6. Carry Over Items:  
a) Chris stated that GPD is looking into incorporating “Fire Stop Signs” during one of our future fire drills.  

Chris said that this will be addressed when Public Safety comes out to assist us on determining 
multiple evacuation points. Adam will confirm that a Secondary Exit Drill will take place on August 27, 
2019.

b) Liz Visteen noted that she will be calling someone to come out to perform a Bounce House 
Inspection on our Bounce House.   

c) The following were scheduled for Children’s Circle: A fire drill on August 27, 2019, a tornado drill on 
August 28, 2019, and an active shooter drill on August 29, 2019. 

d) Chris formed a sub-committee to discuss lockdown procedures and elements. The sub-committee 
includes Chris Leiner, Bobby Collins, Adam Wohl, Jessica Stockl and Bill Eldridge. Chris will send 
out a meeting invite for July 9, 2019 at 2pm. 

e) EAP procedures will be reviewed at the Breakfast & Learn on July 17, 2019 
f) Bobby confirmed that we are using eventhelper.com.

   
7. Certificate of Insurance Information:  Please continue to submit any needed Certificate of Insurance 

information, as requested.  The COIs should be updated on a monthly basis.   

8. New Items:   
a) July 4th training will take place on July 2, 2019.  
b) Chris will inspect the stairs at the beach for potential new issues. 
c) More investigation needed for the north lockers on the beach for potential property claims. 

9. Wellness Initiatives:     
a) Liz Stowick and Ann Scheuer started a summer staff walking program on Tuesdays and Thursdays. 

        Adjourn:  11:30 a.m.   

The next Safety and Wellness Committee Meeting has been scheduled for  
Wednesday, July 17, 2019 at 11:00 a.m.      



VII. Executive Director Report

Glencoe Park District
July 2019 Board Meeting



Glencoe Park District 
Executive Director’s Report 

July 2019 

Fourth of July Celebration!
Our Sesquicentennial Independence Day Celebration was a phenomenal success thanks to the 
outstanding effort of our Parks, Recreation, and Business Service Teams. This year, effort was 
bigger than previous years due to the Sesquicentennial, which meant longer hours for all of our 
teams. Last minute reconfiguration of activities and stages were needed due to rain soaked parks, 
but with a little innovation we were able to work it all out and liked the end results enough to 
consider setting up that way in the future. We had an extra special parade presence with three 
floats and many vehicles along with many Children’s Circle and camp children. We even beat 
the Village in our Dunk Tank contest thanks to Commissioner Covey stepping up to be in the 
dunk tank, for some reason kids really wanted to dunk him more than me! After the event was 
over Parks, Recreation, and Business Services Teams were at work the next day cleaning up the 
parks, providing camp, and taking in registration. Kudos to our team for living up to our mission 
by creating memorable experiences for the residents of Glencoe! 

Fall Program Registration 
The Recreation, Marketing, and Registration Teams have been busy preparing for fall. The fall 
brochure delivery to residents was on or around July 8. Residents will be able to register online 
starting at 7:00am on a first-come, first-served basis on Wednesday, July 31. Nonresidents will 
be able to begin registering for programs on August 5. The Recreation Team has been very 
creative in their offerings. 

Programs
Summer programs and facilities are going very well. Bobby and his team have hired exceptional 
staff that were trained very well for the important jobs they are hired to do. Staff has been 
challenged by the rainy weather for the start of the beach and camp season. Camp staff have 
come up with creative games and crafts to keep them entertained. They have exciting field trips 
and campouts planned for the summer. The beach staff is monitoring conditions and opening the 
beach when possible. The start of July is promising with a string of warm days with no rain, 
which we hope equates to large amount of visitors to the beach. We did see additional erosion in 
early July due undercurrents and high wave action. Staff are repairing and moving around 
sand/rocks when possible. 

Beach Training 
Public safety as well as a number of other emergency services from other municipalities will be 
doing their annual dive training on the beach on the July 18 during the early morning. The 
training will simulate the response in the event that swimmers or boaters are reported missing 
near Glencoe Beach. Please pass this information along to anyone else who may get inquiries 
from the public. Please let me know if you have any other questions or want additional 
information.  



2

Takiff Maintenance 
Please note that annual maintenance at the Takiff Center is scheduled on August 17-23 and the 
gym will be closed during that time. The fitness center, registration, and administrative offices 
will be closed Monday, August 19 and Tuesday, August 20, and no programs will be held 
Monday, August 19 through Friday, August 23. Beginning August 24, all regular programming, 
rentals, and gym usage will resume. 

August Committee Meeting 
At this time, we see no need for an August Committee meeting. The August 20 Board meeting 
will be held under a different format. We will approve a few action items and then do our annual 
Parks Tour. Staff will not be preparing reports for this meeting. The meeting will begin at Watts 
Recreation Center (due to annual maintenance at Takiff) and then we will take the GPD Bus 
“Hilary” for the tour. 

Glencoe Beach and Lakefront Advisory Group Meeting 
The next Lakefront Advisory Group meeting is at 7:00pm on July 30 at Glencoe Beach in Sun 
Shelter 5.

Dog Park Task Force 
The Dog Park Task Force will begin meeting in late July. The first meeting will include a tour of 
park sites that were identified by the community and Board. 

Freedom of Information Report 
There were no FOIA requests this month. 

Vacation
I will be out of town for vacation July 18 - July 23 and then again August 9 – 16. During this 
time Carol, Chris, or Bobby will be in the office should you have any questions or concerns. 
Please call the front desk and asked for the “acting director” and your call will be forwarded to 
the appropriate person. I will be out of state, but will have my cell phone with me should I need 
to be reached for any emergencies. 

Submitted by: 
Lisa Sheppard, CPRP 
Executive Director 





��������� �		
��
�����������
����
��������������������	
���	�
��������� �!	
���"�	
����
#�����
������
�����
��������
��������
���� �$�������	�%
�����

�����&����� ������	�
����� �	������
�����
��������$��#$�	
��$��	
�$
����$������
$�
	�����$�
$���'$��������$�())��'*(�����������
��)
�$��	
� ���
 ��+

,--./�01234�5617860�29�.61:23;�<61=869�13>�;-.?
=-@0969�6AB74C�D-078�E8-06�B10F�>29702=79�106
?66.23;�786�06:63@6�=0@3=8C

G4�HIJKD�IDD�,LMMNOOI��13>�PIDQKM�QC�PNJRSID

TQNDKKJ�TJKEE�UVLD�WX/�WYZ[

� �

\.63=-6�G61=8/�B2=7@06>�-3�E17@0>14/�V@36�WW/�WYZ[/�8193]7�17701=76>�A134�<2;�=0-5>9�7829�9@AA60�>@6�7-�786�=-.>�5617860�13>�0123C

Ŝ10F�H->21F�LF631�_�T2-3660�T0699̀



��������� �		
��
�����������
����
��������������������	
���	�
��������� �!	
���"�	
����
#�����
������
�����
��������
��������
���� �$�������	�%
�����

�����&����� ������	�
����� �	������
�����
��������$��#$�	
��$��	
�$
����$������
$�
	�����$�
$���'$��������$�())��'*(�����������
��)
�$��	
� ���
 ��+

,-.�/-.01�21-.3�45.6�7890.8:09�0150�.3;<�-=�.3>3=?3�@.-A�@33B45<8=C�C-;@3.9D

9E8AA3.9�5=7�F35:1BC-3.9D�013�:-;7D�E30�E35013.�0189�9359-=�89�5778=C�?4�0-�5

9?AA3.�-@�789:-=03=0G

H.35�45.6�7890.8:0�-@@8:85;9�95<�A5=<�F35:139�15>3�F33=�-43=�@-.�I?90�5�4-.08-=�-@

J?=3�5=7�.58=<�E35013.�159�C.350;<�.37?:37�013�=?AF3.�-@�C-;@�.-?=79�4;5<37�50

;-:5;�@5:8;80839G�K3<-=7�I?90�;35>8=C�F35:139�5=7�C-;@�:-?.939�3A40<D�0150�A35=9

3L43:037�.3>3=?39�15>3�@5;;3=�915.4;<G

MNOPQRSTPUPVR

��W����������������%����

MNOPQRSTPUPVR



��������� �		
��
�����������
����
��������������������	
���	�
��������� �!	
���"�	
����
#�����
������
�����
��������
��������
���� �$�������	�%
�����

�����&����� ������	�
����� �	������
�����
��������$��#$�	
��$��	
�$
����$������
$�
	�����$�
$���'$��������$�())��'*(�����������
��)
�$��	
� ���
 +�,

-./0�1023/04�564789�3/0�100:;�<025789�6=�3>�?0@>472<�A2B�@250�40;75083;

40<6C3283�3>�D6B�;02;>8�=2;;0;E�0F08�1/08�3/0B�1040�57;C>68305E�285�8>1E�3/>;0

1/>�5>8G3�/2F0�2�=2;;�B03�240�3/78:789E�H1/B�;/>6<5�I�D6B�>80�8>1E�1/08�73G;

2<@>;3�J6<BKGL�;275�M30F0�N7<;>8E�0O0C637F0�5740C3>4�>P�3/0�N7<@0330�Q24:�A7;347C3R

N73/�SETUU�0@=<>B00;E�VUU�>P�1/>@�240�;02;>82<�1>4:04;E�3/0�=24:�57;347C3�7;�3/0

<2490;3�0@=<>B04�78�N7<@0330E�N7<;>8�;275R

N73/�2D>63�VUW�>P�3/0�=24:�57;347C3G;�>=0423789�D65903�P68505�DB�6;04�P00;E�N7<;>8

;275�3/7;�;6@@04G;�78C<0@083�1023/04�/2;�=4>@=305�;>@0�D0<3X379/308789

@02;640;R

Y?>;3�4025Z�[092<�@247\6282�7;�C>@789�3>�I<<78>7;�2;�]>FR�Q473̂:04�;798;�D7<<�/0

C2<<;�28�H7@=>43283�285�>F04560�C/2890�3>�>64�;3230G�_

-./0�D25�1023/04�/2;�/25�2�47==<0�0PP0C3�23�3/0�=24:�57;347C3E�D0C26;0�1/08�8>�>80

7;�C>@789�3>�3/0�=>><E�3/0�D02C/�285�3/0�9><P�C>64;0E�8>3�0F04B>80�7;�9>789�3>�903�2<<

>P�3/0�/>64;�3/0B�1040�/>=789�3>�903EL�N7<;>8�;275R

N/7<0�3/0�024<B�P>40C2;3�/783;�3/23�;>@0�;688B�52B;�0O=0C305�3/7;�100:E�3/0

78304@782D<B�<>89�;3403C/�>P�C/7<<BE�4278B�1023/04�;78C0�?0@>472<�A2B�/2;�=63�2

àbc�̀def

ghij�klmnn�ohjpk�qmjrs�tuvw
kljuxylqux�lquzj�{|}~p��ozlq��mjyul
�mlu��ulzju�uxl��ujzuks

�����������������������������������������������b�������������

�������������������

e  �¡d¢ 

£����b��f����

e�����������������¤¥�¦



��������� �		
��
�����������
����
��������������������	
���	�
��������� �!	
���"�	
����
#�����
������
�����
��������
��������
���� �$�������	�%
�����

�����&����� ������	�
����� �	������
�����
��������$��#$�	
��$��	
�$
����$������
$�
	�����$�
$���'$��������$�())��'*(�����������
��)
�$��	
� ���
 *�+

,-./01.�2.3045�67089:.;�1/�<389:;3=5�>9/.�??5�?@AB5�43C/D8�388:308.;�E3/=�F7G�0:1H;C�847C�C9EE.:�;9.�81�84.�01-;�H.384.:�3/;�:37/I

JK3:L�M1;73L�NL./3�O�P71/..:�P:.CCQ

RSTUVW�XY�XZ[RXXW�WV\WVS[]XY�]Y�̂XW[_�̀_XWV�\XTTZY][]Va�b]cV�dbVY\XVe�[_V�USWc

R]a[W]\[fa�aUXcVagXTSY�hW]Y�ibSaaVY�aS]Rj

ka�Xl�mZYV�noe�[_V�pVS\_�_SR�XYbq�pVVY�XUVY�lXZW�lZbb�RSqa�a]Y\V�rSq�st�u�vZa[�nwx

Xl�[_V�sn�RSqa�Xll]\]Sba�_SR�SY[]\]US[VR�yWVV[]Yy�z]a][XWae�ibSaaVY�aS]Rj

{|_V�gVS[_VW�]a�SbaX�]TUS\[]Yy�XZW�USWca�p]y�[]TV�j�j�[_VqfWV�ZYRVWgS[VW�SYR�[XX

gV[�[X�TXge�aX�[_Vq�\SY�pV\XTV�XzVWyWXgYe�gVVRq�SYR�S[[WS\[�TXa}Z][XVae~

ibSaaVY�aS]Rj

�WV}ZVY[�\SY\VbbS[]XYa�Xl�WS]YVR�XZ[�qXZ[_�pSaVpSbb�SYR�aX\\VW�ySTVa�XY�USWc

R]a[W]\[�l]VbRa�_Sa�SbaX�\WVS[VR�S�bXy]a[]\Sb�Y]y_[TSWV�lXW�Xll]\]Sba�g_X�YVVR�[X

WVa\_VRZbV�[_V�VzVY[ae�SYR�SWV�lXW\VR�[X�aUVYR�V�[WS�RXbbSWa�UWVUSW]Yy�[_V�l]VbRae

a_V�aS]Rj



��������� �		
��
�����������
����
��������������������	
���	�
��������� �!	
���"�	
����
#�����
������
�����
��������
��������
���� �$�������	�%
�����

�����&����� ������	�
����� �	������
�����
��������$��#$�	
��$��	
�$
����$������
$�
	�����$�
$���'$��������$�())��'*(�����������
��)
�$��	
� ���
 ��+

,-.�/011234�560-.�.73�8519�:24.12;.<4�40::3=�>23?:4�5=:�@0?>�;0-143�/313�-84.5@3:

.724�/339�6A�>3514�.75.�1242=@�B593�C2;72@5=�/5.31�?3D3?4E�/72;7�75D3�5?135:A

:5F5@3:�.73�G?3=;03�8231E�513�=0/�2=�:5=@31�0>�.-@@2=@�.73�8519�:24.12;.<4�635;7H

42:3�4.015@3�?0;9314�0>>�.7321�>00.2=@4�5=:�.0442=@�.73F�2=.0�.73�?593E�I?5443=�452:J

KL.<4�135??A�-=>01.-=5.3E�63;5-43�.73�310420=�0>�.75.�=5110/�4.13.;7�0>�635;7�F35=4

/3�;5=<.�@3.�0-1�3M-28F3=.�0-.�.7313�.0�F0D3�.73�?0;9314E�/72;7�513�-43:�6A�452?014

.0�4.013�.72=@4�?293�?2>3�N5;93.4EO�I?5443=�452:J

P>.31�3=:-12=@�32@7.�2=;734�0>�152=�2=�C5A�Q�:0-6?3�.73�=01F5?�5F0-=.�Q�.73

G?3=;03�G0?>�I0-143�/54�:3431.3:�>01�./0�:5A4�?54.�F0=.7E�452:�R1-4.33�S04387

T5?/5UE�/70�5?40�431D34�0=�.73�G0?>�P:D2401A�I0FF2..33J

L=�5::2.20=E�13=.3:�80/31�;51.4E�/72;7�T5?/5U�:34;1263:�54�K5�62@�13D3=-3

@3=315.01EO�/313�4.5??3:�>01�VW�:5A4�2=�C5AJ

X72?3�T5?/5U�34.2F5.3:�.75.�13D3=-3�@3=315.3:�>10F�>33H85A2=@�@0?>314�0=�.73

8-6?2;�;0-143�?54.�F0=.7�/54�VYZ�?0/31�.75=�5=.2;285.3:E�73�452:�.75.�A351H.0H:5.3E

.73�;?-6<4�=3.�08315.2=@�2=;0F3�/54�[WZ�F013�.75=�5=.2;285.3:E�/72;7�73

5..126-.3:�.0�45D2=@4�>10F�13:-;3:�85A10??�5=:�;-.H65;94�.0�0.731�3U83=434J

��\����������������%����

]̂ _̀ abcd̀e f̀b



��������� �		
��
�����������
����
��������������������	
���	�
��������� �!	
���"�	
����
#�����
������
�����
��������
��������
���� �$�������	�%
�����

�����&����� ������	�
����� �	������
�����
��������$��#$�	
��$��	
�$
����$������
$�
	�����$�
$���'$��������$�())��'*(�����������
��)
�$��	
� ���
 ��+

,-./0�12345�6.789:;�<8=0�31>8=:>�3?.80�@A30�0.�B377�0A2�9=>13:0�B39C/�:231

0A2�?.1421D�6A=7412:�312�4E=:>D�F.:G0�7..H�3@3ED�I

JKL�C2.C72�C73E�72//�>.7LM�@2�:224�72//�/03LLMN�O37@3P�/3=4D

QRSTUVWXTYTZV

[A2�@230A21\1273024�4=72993�L3B=:>�C31H�4=/01=B0�.LL=B=37/�.:�0A2�].10A�̂A.12�=/

37/.�C73E=:>�.80�30�C8?7=B�3:4�C1=_302�12B1230=.:37�_2:82/�3B1.//�0A2�̀D̂DM�@A212

2P01292�@230A21�a�2=0A21�0..�A.0M�.1�0..�B.74�a�=/�@123H=:>�A3_.B�@=0A�?84>20/

0A30�42C2:4�.:�3�/89921�12_2:82�/01239�421=_24�L1.9�L22/M�/3=4�b=BA�F.72/AM�_=B2

C12/=42:0�L.1�/01302>=B�=:=0=30=_2/�30�0A2�c/A?81:M�d3D\?3/24�]30=.:37�b2B1230=.:

3:4�e31H�c//.B=30=.:D

JfA2:�0A2�@230A21�=/�?34�L.1�3:�2P02:424�C21=.4�.L�0=92M�0A2/2�.1>3:=g30=.:/�A3_2

:.�/3L20E�:20�0.�12C73B2�0A./2�12_2:82/�>2:213024�?E�L22/�3:4�.0A21�BA31>2/MN

F.72/A�/3=4D

e1=_302�B.:013B0.1/�0A30�C1._=42�/21_=B2/�0.�C8?7=B�3>2:B=2/M�/8BA�3/�?8/=:2//2/�0A30

/277�B.:B2//=.:/M�37/.�03H2�3�L=:3:B=37�A=0�@A2:�.804..1�_2:82/M�7=H2�C..7/M�?23BA2/

3:4�>.7L�B.81/2/�312�/A8002124M�.1�L3=7�0.�30013B0�_=/=0.1/M�A2�/3=4D

Jf=0A�>.7L�B.81/2/M�E.8�A3_2�3�3�01=C72�@A399E;�KL�0A2�L.12B3/0�B377/�L.1�13=:M�0A2

>.7L21/�4.:G0�B.92�.80h�@A2:�=0�4.2/�13=:M�0A2E�4.:G0�B.92�.80h�3:4�0A2�43E�3L021�=0

13=:/M�0A2E�L=>812�0A2�B.81/2�=/�>.=:>�0.�?2�@20M�3:4�=0G/�:.0�@.10A�C73E=:>�.:MN

F.72/A�/3=4D



��������� �		
��
�����������
����
��������������������	
���	�
��������� �!	
���"�	
����
#�����
������
�����
��������
��������
���� �$�������	�%
�����

�����&����� ������	�
����� �	������
�����
��������$��#$�	
��$��	
�$
����$������
$�
	�����$�
$���'$��������$�())��'*(�����������
��)
�$��	
� ���
 '�+

,-./01.�2.3045�67089:.;�1/�<389:;3=5�>9/.�??5�?@AB5�43C/D8�388:308.;�E3/=�F7G�0:1H;C�847C�C9EE.:�;9.�81�84.�01-;�H.384.:�3/;�:37/I

JK3:L�M1;73L�NL./3�O�P71/..:�P:.CCQ

RSTUV�WXYZ[�\U�]Ŵ_ �̀YVVX_ V̀U�VT�̀WT̀�̂̀ �VaX�UVŴbbcdeb�fTYc�deẐUVWgh

iccdeTdU�dU�VYjdeb�YeTVaXW�UVX̀�YkYg�lWT_�dVU�ZdWVdXUV�UT̂WfX�Tl�XcXfVWdfdVg�m

n̂V�oTcXUa�UYdZ�VadU�Û__XWpU�XqVWX_X�kXYVaXW�r�WYdeg�YeZ�fadccg�de�VaX�SdZkXUV

YeZ�Te�VaX�sYUV�tTYUVh�YeZ�ucdUVXWdeb�aTV�VX_ X̀WYV̂WXU�de�fdVdXU�cdjX�vaTXedq�r

_dbaV�uX�adeVdeb�YV�Y�_ f̂a�_TWX�ZdWX�UfXeYWdT�VaYe�ŵUV�Y�UXYUTeYc�YeT_Ycgx

y]aX�WXYc�ẑXUVdTe�aXWX�dUh�ZTXU�Ycc�Tl�VadU�XqVWX_X�kXYVaXW�ÛbbXUV�VaYV�VadU�dU�VaX

UaỲX�Tl�VadebU�VT�fT_X�kdVa�fcd_YVX�faYebX�de�VaX�kTWcZ{|�oTcXUa�UYdZx

y]aXWX�YWX�Tu}dT̂U�UdbeU�YeZ�fTeUdZXWYucX�X}dZXefX�VaYV�̀TdeVU�VT�VadUh�YeZ�dl�UTh�dV

kdcc�aY}X�Y�WXYc�XllXfV�Te�̀YWjU�YeZ�WXfWXYVdTe�TWbYed~YVdTeU�VaYV�̀WT}dZX�UXW}dfXU

VT�VaX�̀̂ ucdfh|�oTcXUa�YZZXZx

nYfj�YV�VaX��cXefTX��Tcl�tĉuh�kaXWX��XeXWYc�SYeYbXW��VXccY��YeTU�dU�VWgdeb�VT

jXX̀�Y�UXeUX�Tl�â_TW�YuT̂V�VaX�ZdU_Yc�kXYVaXWh�UaX�TuUXW}XZ�VaYV�cTfYc�bTclXWU



��������� �		
��
�����������
����
��������������������	
���	�
��������� �!	
���"�	
����
#�����
������
�����
��������
��������
���� �$�������	�%
�����

�����&����� ������	�
����� �	������
�����
��������$��#$�	
��$��	
�$
����$������
$�
	�����$�
$���'$��������$�())��'*(�����������
��)
�$��	
� ���
 +�+

,--.,/�01�2,3.�4.516.�785/.,978:;<�01;./,80�1=�02.�-11/�>.,02./�518?707189@

AB7C.�D/1E8?21:�F,<G�>.�5,8H0�9..6�01�4/.,C�1E0�1=�0279�5<5;.�1=�0279�51;?�,8?�>.0

>.,02./�-,00./8GI�9,7?�J,819G�>21�.K-/.99.?�21-.�02,0�>,/6G�9E88<�>.,02./�>7;;

.3.80E,;;<�-/.3,7;@

LM190�/.,?N�OK1075�5,0�9210�01�?.,02�4<�P;11678:018�51-9�,=0./�,00,5C78:�QR

<.,/R1;?�:7/;�,8?�2./�6102./�S

AT.�,/.�5,E071E9;<�1-07679075�02,0�0278:9�,/.�:178:�01�0E/8�,/1E8?G�,8?�>.�>7;;

2,3.�,�:/.,0�/.90�1=�02.�9.,918GI�J,819�9,7?G�,??78:U�IV8.�0278:�79�=1/�5./0,78�R�02.

:/,99�79�:/..8@W



VIII. Action Item A
Approval of Resolution No. 901

A Resolution for the Commitment of
$650,000 of the Corporate Fund Balance and
$850,000 of the Recreation Fund Balance for
Future Capital Projects of the Glencoe Park

District

Glencoe Park District
July 2019 Board Meeting



GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION No. 901 

A RESOLUTION FOR THE COMMITMENT OF $650,000 OF THE CORPORATE 
FUND BALANCE AND $850,000 OF THE RECREATION FUND BALANCE
FOR FUTURE CAPITAL PROJECTS OF THE GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, the Board of Park Commissioners (the “Board”) of the Glencoe Park 
District, has a Fund Balance Policy which was adopted by the Board in December 2011 
and amended in August 2012 and again in February 2017; 

WHEREAS, the District has more than the 50% required fund balance reserve in 
the Corporate Fund of the District and more than 50% required fund balance reserve in 
the Recreation Fund; and 

WHEREAS, as the District has completed its master plan process which 
identifies future capital needs of the District; 

NOW THEREFORE, Be It and It is Hereby Ordained by the Board of Park 
Commissioners of the Glencoe Park District, Cook County, Illinois that 

Section 1: In the current Fiscal Year 2019/2020, the Park District will 
designate an amount of $650,000 in the Corporate Fund and an additional $850,000 in 
the Recreation Fund as “committed fund balance” to be used specifically for “Future 
Capital Projects of the District” as specifically outlined in the Master Plan. 

Section 2: The Resolution shall be in full force and effect from after its 
adoption as provided by law.

Adopted by roll call vote on July 16, 2019: 

 AYES:      
 NAYS:   
 ABSENT:   
 ABSTAIN:   

              
                        

      Michael Covey, Treasurer 
      Board of Park Commissioners 

      ATTEST: 

                        

      Lisa M. Sheppard, Secretary 
      Board of Park Commissioners 
[SEAL]



STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF COOK ) 

SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE

I, Lisa M. Sheppard,  do hereby certify that I am Secretary of the Board of Park 
Commissioners of the Glencoe Park District, Cook County, Illinois, and as such official, I 
am keeper of the records, ordinances, files and seal of said Park District; and,

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing instrument is a true and correct copy of 
Resolution No. 901: 

A RESOLUTION FOR THE COMMITMENT OF $650,000 OF THE CORPORATE 
FUND BALANCE AND $850,000 OF THE RECREATION FUND BALANCE
FOR FUTURE CAPITAL PROJECTS OF THE GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 

adopted at a duly called Regular Meeting of the Board of Park Commissioners of the 
Glencoe Park District, held at Glencoe, Illinois, in said District at 7:00 p.m. on the 16th

day of July 2019. 

I DO FURTHER CERTIFY that the deliberations of the Board on the adoption of said 
resolution were conducted openly, that the vote on the adoption of said resolution was 
taken openly, that said meeting was called and held at a specified time and place 
convenient to the public, that notice of said meeting was duly given to all of the news 
media requesting such notice, that said meeting was called and held in strict 
compliance with the provisions of the Open Meetings Act of the State of Illinois, as 
amended, and with the provisions of the Park District Code of the State of Illinois, as 
amended, and that the Board has complied with all of the provisions of said Act and 
said Code and with all of the procedural rules of the Board. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature and the seal of the 
Glencoe Park District at Glencoe, Illinois this 16th day of July 2019. 

Lisa M. Sheppard, Secretary 
Board of Park Commissioners
Glencoe Park District

[SEAL]



VIII. Action Item B
Approval of the Annual Treasurer’s Report

Glencoe Park District
July 2019 Board Meeting

































VIII. Action Item C
Approval to Cancel the August Regular

Committee Meeting

No Documents

Glencoe Park District
July 2019 Board Meeting


	Agenda
	III. Consent Agenda Items
	Minutes of June 18, 2019 Finance Committee of the Whole Meeting
	Minutes of June 18, 2019 Regular Board Meeting
	Minutes of July 9, 2019 Committee of the Whole Meeting
	Voucher List of Bills 6/13/19-7/9/19

	V. Financial Report
	G/L Mthly Pooled Cash Report
	Monthly Funds Report
	Monthly Financial Analysis

	VI. Staff Reports
	Business Dept Report
	Recreation and Facilities Dept Report
	Parks and Facilities Maintenance Dept Report
	Marketing and Communications Dept Report
	Minutes of June 19, 2019 Safety and Wellness Committee Meeting

	VII. Executive Director Report
	Executive Director Report
	Letter from Rep. Brad Schneider
	Article on weather's impact on North Shore revenue

	VIII. Action Item A: Resolution No. 901 Fund Balance Transfer
	Resolution No. 901

	VIII. Action Item B: Annual Treasurer's Report
	Annual Treasurer's Report FY2018/19

	VIII. Action Item C: Cancel August Regular Commitee Meeting



